

Name, Location, Ownership






1.
Historic name 
Israel Demeritt House




2.
District or area






3.
Street and number
Off Mast Road Extension




4.
City or town

Durham





5.
County

Strafford




6.
Current owner
University of  New Hampshire




Function or Use

7.
Current use(s)
Child development study center





8.
Historic use(s)
Farm dwelling





Architectural Information

9.
Style

Federal




10.
Architect/builder
Unknown; possibly Nathaniel Demeritt




11.
Source






12.
Construction date
1808




13.
Source Stackpole, History of the Town of Durham 
14.
Alterations, with dates Some interior remodeling
c. 1850






15.
Moved?    no  X  yes   FORMCHECKBOX 
  date:  



Exterior Features

16.
Foundation
Split fieldstone with split and hammered granite underpinning

17.
Cladding  

Clapboards




18.
Roof material
Slate




19.
Chimney material
Brick laid in clay




20.
Type of roof

Gable






21.
Chimney location
Center of ridge, main house and wing





22.
Number of stories
Two




23.
Entry location
Center of facade



24.
Windows

9 over 6
double hung




Replacement?    no  X  yes   FORMCHECKBOX 
  date:



Site Features

25.
Setting
Rural agricultural





26.
Outbuildings
 Small shed converted to offices



27.
Landscape features Mature cherry, maple, horse chestnut
28.
Acreage   Less than one






29.
Tax map/parcel #





30
UTM reference
Zone 19: 47-78-840N; 3-41-350E


31.
USGS quadrangle and scale  Dover West, N.H.; 1:24000
Form prepared by
32.
Name

James L. Garvin




33.
Organization
NHDHR





34.

Date of survey
2 July 2001







41. Historical Background and Role in the Town or City’s Development:  The Demeritt House was built in 1808 by Israel Demeritt (1754-1827).  Everett S. Stackpole and Lucien Thompson provide the earlier history of the Demeritt family in their History of the Town of Durham (1913), Vol. I, pp. 349-51:



Not far from the Falls in the low ground called Follett’s swamp or Moharimet’s swamp, Eli Demeritt built his log cabin on land granted before 1700.  It had one room and no cellar.  Later he built a log house of two rooms.  His grandson, Capt. Samuel Demeritt, built upon the same spot a framed house of two stories in front with a lean-to.  The brick for the chimney was from old England, and the bottom of the oven was of tiles, eight inches square, which had a crown stamped on one side with lettering.  In the present house, in the possession of Albert DeMeritt, the doors of the cupboards in the kitchen and dining room were from the old house, and the upper part of the beaufet is in the attic.  In the sitting room and dining room hearths, the tiles may still be seen.  Some of the windows were of diamond-shape, leaded panes.  The house was unpainted, ceiled and paneled. From Capt. Samuel Demeritt the place was inherited by his son, Israel, who built the present house in 1808.  The brick were made on the farm.  Israel Demeritt was succeeded in ownership by his son, Stephen, and from him it passed to the present owner, who has added many acres to the farm.  He is the great-great-great grandson of the Eli Demeritt to whom the land was granted and laid out 31 May 1699.  The farm is one of the largest and most productive in Durham, and the house and well-shaded lawn, with outlook upon broad meadows, are a delight to one who appreciates home comforts and rural scenery.  



Across the fields another Demeritt house was built by Capt. Nathaniel Demeritt, brother of Israel above named.  It was rebuilt by Capt. Nathaniel and his son, the Rev. William Demeritt, about 1819.  The first was a one story and a half house.  The present house, beneath the old elms, is owned by George P. Demeritt, son of the Rev. William.


As noted below under Architectural Description and Comparative Evaluation, Israel’s brother and neighbor Nathaniel was apparently a joiner who may have finished the interior of the Demeritt House.


It appears that certain architectural and decorative changes were made to the house by Israel Demeritt’s son, the Hon. Stephen Demeritt (1806-1867).  Stephen apparently inherited the house after his father’s death in 1827, but it is noteworthy that his mother, Lois Cate Demeritt, lived until 1838, possibly occupying a portion of the house as her widow’s dower.  Active in Durham politics, and in the state legislature, Stephen Demeritt married Nancy P. Chesley (1810-1894) in 1840.  Several changes made by Stephen and Nancy Demeritt are visible in the house today, including Greek Revival woodwork in the parlor of the house and mid-nineteenth-century French wallpaper in the front entry (see below, Architectural Description and Comparative Evaluation).  Anecdotes provided by a descendant and quoted in a report by Peter B. Olney, AIA, suggest that Nancy Demeritt was active and ambitious in providing other amenities for the house.  Margaret D. (Mrs. John T.) Croghan, granddaughter of Stephen and Nancy Demeritt and daughter of Albert and Elizabeth Pickering Thompson DeMeritt, corresponded with Professor Philip Mason Marston of the University of New Hampshire history department in October, 1962.  Among the information that Mrs. Croghan conveyed were the facts that



My sister has found some scraps of the original wall paper of the front hall of the Albert DeMeritt house.  To be sure, they are tiny . . . Are you interested in having them?  



I also have small rugs [made] of the carpet that my grandmother Mrs. Stephen DeMeritt made.  She raised the sheep, spun, dyed and wove the wool for this carpet, which did entirely cover the floor of the guest room.  I also have an unusual rug of the hooked type with linen background, and she raised the flax, retted, spun and wove the background for the floral design.


Stephen’s and Nancy’s son, Albert DeMeritt (as he spelled his name), was the last male member of the family to own the property.  He was born in 1851 and died in 1913.  Interested in education, DeMeritt helped to found the Durham Town Library.  Shortly after legislation abolished control of public schools by local districts and made town schools the responsibility of each community as a whole, DeMeritt drafted a free textbook bill.  Becoming law in 1887, the bill authorized towns to provide free schoolbooks to each student, providing uniformity of instructional materials and lessons in each town.  


DeMeritt played an important role in the formative years of the New Hampshire College of Agriculture and the Mechanic Arts, which moved from Hanover to Durham in 1893.  DeMeritt was deeply interested in the college as one of its trustees and as secretary of its finance committee, but was also a member of the New Hampshire Board of Agriculture for nine years and served two terms in the state legislature.  He built a dormitory on Garrison Avenue in 1894 to accommodate the influx of students to 


Durham; the college bought the structure in 1915 and named it Ballard Hall.  He graded the first athletic field in 1894.  As a state representative in 1913, DeMeritt led the fight for approval of a bill to construct an engineering building at the college.   The bill was passed, appropriating $80,000 for construction of a building that was named DeMeritt Hall.  DeMeritt did not live to see this structure completed.  In August, 1913, while hunting woodchucks, DeMeritt accidentally shot himself while climbing a fence with his loaded gun.  His widow, Elizabeth Pickering Thompson DeMeritt, served as dean of women at New Hampshire College from 1919 until her death in 1931; the college named a home economics practice house in her honor.  Throughout his life, DeMeritt continued to maintain the family farm of 300 acres and to engage in the lumber business.


Shortly after Albert DeMeritt’s death, his widow, Elizabeth Pickering Thompson DeMeritt, sold the property to Walter C. O’Kane (1877-1973), a professor of entomology at the university since 1909.  During the early years of the twentieth century, O’Kane was active in a statewide program to control and suppress the newly introduced brown-tail and gypsy moths.  He led the campaign for home food production during World War I.  Like Albert and Elizabeth DeMeritt, Professor O’Kane was devoted to the University of New Hampshire.  In 1930, he and his first wife, Clifford Hetherington O’Kane, deeded much of the 300-acre Demeritt Farm to the university, reserving the Demeritt house and various outbuildings to themselves.  In 1959, O’Kane deeded the main house to the university, retaining only one acre with a small dwelling that were to be purchased by the school at a negotiated price within ten years.  Professor O’Kane and his second wife deeded the remainder of the property to the school in 1964, apparently removing to the village of Wonalancet in Tamworth.


Walter and Clifford O’Kane had a son, Richard (1911-1994) who served as commander of the submarine USS Tang during World War II.  The Tang sank thirty-three Japanese ships, more than any other United States submarine in the Pacific war, but was crippled in October, 1944, by the malfunctioning of one of her own torpedoes.  Richard O’Kane and nine other survivors were captured and imprisoned during the remainder of the war, suffering extreme hardship.  For his military service, Richard O’Kane was awarded three silver stars, three Navy crosses, the Legion of Merit, and the Congressional Medal of Honor.

42. Applicable NHDHR Historic Contexts:  

49.   Mixed agriculture and the family farm, 1630-present.

94.   Architecture in New Hampshire, 1623-present.

100. Higher education, 1770-present.

43. Architectural Description and Comparative Evaluation:  The Israel Demeritt House is a two-story, center-chimney frame dwelling with a long one-story frame ell extending from its rear elevation.  The house stands on its own farm lane leading westerly from Mast Road Extension in Durham.  The main house faces south, and the ell extends northerly.  The house was shaded by mature trees when it was illustrated in the History of the Town of Durham in 1913.  Today, the dwelling is accompanied by several tree specimens of great age, including a large black cherry on its west, a sugar maple off its southeast corner, and a horse chestnut standing close to the eastern elevation of the wing.  Nearby extend large open fields, which are used by the University of New Hampshire for its dairy science programs and maintain much of the agricultural setting that has always characterized the property.  The rural nature of this setting has been compromised to a degree by the construction of a highway bypass around the compact part of Durham.  This road curves north of the house and carries a high volume of traffic through land that once belonged to the Demeritt Farm, not far from the family burying ground.

The Demeritt House is a rectangular dwelling with a five-bay façade and a central doorway.  The doorway is a Tuscan frontispiece in the federal style, apparently in original condition except for the replacement of its horizontal cornice.  Windows have 9-over-6 sashes with characteristic federal-style muntin profiles and simple exterior casings with ovolo-and-fillet backband 


mouldings.  The house retains most of its original clapboards, which are attached with hand-forged nails and have skived and lapped ends.  Fenestration on the east and west end elevations is generally symmetrical with the exception of the western windows in the kitchen at the rear of the main house.  Here, an original window was augmented by a mid-nineteenth-century sash, and the space between the two was filled with a third window in the early twentieth century.  The roof of the house is covered with gray slate.


The summer kitchen wing of the house extends northerly from the rear elevation of the main dwelling.  Its eastern elevation extends easterly of the east wall of the main house to provide room for a rear doorway.  This entrance opens on a hallway that extends through the full width of the ell and provides access to both the main house and the summer kitchen.  A porch roof extends from this doorway along the eastern elevation of the main house, supported by columns that rise from a brick pavement.  The wing also has a second, independent exterior doorway that opens near the center of its eastern elevation.


The summer kitchen is finished with joiner’s work that is comparable to that of the main house.  Its chimney has both a kitchen fireplace and oven on its south face and a small chamber fireplace on its north face.  As noted below, the chimney of the summer kitchen is supported on a brick vault, unlike the solid stone pier of the main chimney, suggesting that this chimney may have been built at a somewhat later time.  It is possible, but so far unproven, that the summer kitchen was adapted after 1827 as an independent residence for Israel Demeritt’s widow, Lois Cate Demeritt, who lived until 1838.  This possibility is strengthened by the fact that the chamber on the north side of the chimney in the wing is finished with a fine federal-style mantelpiece, suggesting the use of the room as something more than an adjunct to a utilitarian summer kitchen.


Off the northeast corner of the end of the ell stands a detached, shed-roofed structure that was probably built as a carriage shed.  This building has been converted to an office and classroom.  Other outbuildings visible in the photograph of the farm in the History of Durham (1913) have been removed.  A large, modern steel-clad child development study center and daycare building now stands east of the house.  Another modern communications building and antenna array stand near the Demeritt cemetery to the north of the house, separated from the building by a thick growth of trees.

The foundations of both the main house and the summer kitchen are constructed of split fieldstone laid in lime-sand mortar and topped with underpinning of hammered granite slabs.  The main house and the ell have fully-excavated cellars, each with a bulkhead entrance, but the two cellars are separated from one another by about three feet of unexcavated soil and were not connected until heating pipes were extended through a small opening from the main house to the ell in modern times.

The frames of both main house and ell are constructed of heavy, hewn timbers.  The main house has a frame of four bents, as is typical of center-chimney dwellings, and has a roof frame composed of rafters and purlins.  The roof of the main house has five purlins on each slope, with a ridgepole.  The roof frame of the wing is similar but of lesser expanse.  


The main house and wing appear to have been built almost simultaneously.  The presence of the ell was apparently anticipated when the main house was underpinned, because the hammered granite slabs do not extend across that part of the rear elevation of the house intersected by the ell.  As seen from the attic of the ell, however, the rear wall of the main house was fully sheathed with bevel-edged pine boards.  These were smoothed as if to receive clapboards, but clapboards were not applied before the frame of the ell was butted against the rear wall of the main house.   This suggests that the ell may postdate the main house by a short time.  Although the chimneys in both the main house and ell are of similar construction above the first floor, the chimney in the main house is supported on a pier of earth-filled stone, while the chimney of the summer kitchen is supported by a large brick vault.


The Demeritt House displays fashionable woodwork for the first decade of the nineteenth century, but some aspects of the house are noticeably conservative.  The house retains the center-chimney plan rather than having chimneys placed against the outer walls.  Most floors have never been painted.  All nails used on the interior and exterior appear to be hand-forged; cut nails appear only where later changes have occurred.  Original hinges are of the H or HL pattern except on exterior doors, where strap hinges are employed.  Original latches are iron rim latches or spring latches.  A few Norfolk latches were added later, and most doors are fitted with mortise latches with knobs.  Some doors have modern deadbolt rim locks.


The interior joinery of both the main house and the wing is of fine quality.  The elaboration of detailing in the main house and the wing are generally comparable.  Although all the joinery expresses the federal style, efforts were made to vary the architectural effect from room to room.  Despite this variation, the same mouldings appear throughout the house in varied applications, suggesting that the same joiners finished the rooms at about the same time.


Some of the most elaborate joinery in the house is displayed in the front entry, where a triple-run staircase with square landings rises against the face of the chimney.  The balustrade has a simple elliptical handrail cap, square balusters, and newel and angle posts of a swelled profile that is unusual before about 1830.  The door casings in the entry, on both first and second floors, are double, and have a very elaborate backband moulding that derives either from Plate 1 of Asher Benjamin’s The Country Builder’s Assistant (1797 with later editions) or from Plate 11 of Benjamin’s The American Builder’s Companion (1806 with later editions).  This moulding is a cove and bead, but attached to the fillet of the cove is a three-quarter-round cable moulding that gives unusual boldness and elaboration to the entry casings.  Nathaniel Demeritt, one of the joiners who may be responsible for the interior finish of the house, is known to have owned a copy of the second edition (1798) of The Country Builder’s Assistant (see below, Comparative evaluation).


The same elaborated moulding is seen in an inverted position as the outermost elements of room cornices in the lower entry and the dining room chamber, indicating that the same joiner finished these two areas at about the same time.


The original parlor of the house, to the left or west of the front entry, was remodeled in the mid-1800s and today retains no original joinery except for the doors that lead into the room from the front entry and the rear kitchen.  The woodwork that was applied to the room during the remodeling is strongly Grecian in character.  The mantelpiece is composed of heavy, square-edged members.   Applied to the wall behind the mantelshelf is a peaked backboard with curved antefix ornaments at each end.  Door and window casings in this remodeled room are composed of flat boards.  The head casings have ovolo-and-fillet cap mouldings.  The front wall of the parlor, between the front windows and the corners of the room, is fitted with two wooden closets that appear to have been added at the time of the remodeling.


The walls of the front entry are covered with a French wallpaper that bears architectural and foliate designs rendered in sepia and bright blue.  This paper appears to date from the mid-1800s.  Paper identical to this pattern has been identified in the now-lost Benjamin Peirce House in Beverly, Massachusetts, which was remodeled in 1858.  This pattern is recorded in a sample book kept by a wallpaper dealer in Salem, Massachusetts, between 1846 and 1866.  The same paper has been documented in at least two other New England stairhalls.  The same pattern, printed in white and gray, exists in fragments in the front stairhall of the Rundlet-May House in Portsmouth, where it was probably installed shortly after 1852.  The Society for the Preservation of New England Antiquities verifies the French origin of the paper and dates the pattern between 1850 and 1860.  The mid-nineteenth-century paper in the Demeritt House entry is pasted over an earlier, laid paper that was printed in black on a white background.  The entry walls may have been redecorated at about the same time the parlor was remodeled.  The parlor now bears modern wallpaper, but it is safe to assume that it, too, was papered in a mid-nineteenth-century style at the time of its remodeling.


The front sitting room of the house, east of the entry, is apparently the room that was referred to as a dining room in the 1913 History of Durham.  This room has a floor of quarter-sawn southern yellow pine, probably added in the early 1900s.  The room has breastwork of flat paneling on the fireplace wall, and its doors and window shutters also display flat panels on the sides facing into the room.  Doors are six-paneled.  Sliding window shutters are of a six-panel design and extend the full height of window openings.  Casings are simple architraves with ovolo-and-bead backband mouldings.  The room has dish closets flanking the fireplace.


This room has a mantelpiece that was added above the fireplace after construction, covering the lowest panel above the fireplace.  An ogee-ended frieze board, a type often seen in the New Hampshire seacoast, supports the mantelshelf.  Similar ogee-ended mantelpieces were installed in the two principal first-floor rooms of the nearby Ffrost-Sawyer House in 1802 (see below, Comparative evaluation). 


This room is presently subdivided by a modern partition that was added to facilitate child studies in the house.  This partition intersects the middle of the fireplace.


The kitchen extends across much of the rear (north) side of the house.  It is marked by a large cooking fireplace with an iron crane.  To the right of the hearth is a door covering the location of a brick oven and ash pit, now sealed up to provide a flue for a boiler in the cellar below.  Doors in this room are four-paneled, and the doors and a long panel above the fireplace have raised panels surrounded by ogee mouldings on stiles and rails.  Most of the backband mouldings in the kitchen are simple, flat-beveled elements that suggest alterations during the mid-1800s.


The kitchen presently extends uninterruptedly to the western side of the house, probably reflecting the removal of a partition that originally had divided a small chamber at the northwestern corner of the house.  East of the kitchen is a partition that encloses rear staircases leading to the cellar and the second floor.  East of the staircase is a sheathed partition that defines a small buttery or pantry.  A brick-walled room, with a brick floor, lies at the bottom of the cellar stairs, evidently serving as a larder or an adjunct to the buttery above.


The front second floor chambers are both finished in an elaborate federal style that is unusual in a country farmhouse.  The western chamber has double casings with ovolo-and-bead backbands.  The door opening from this room to the upper entry has flat panels on the entry side and raised panels on the chamber face, but the stiles and rails on both sides of the door are embellished with ogee mouldings.  The mantelshelf in this chamber is supported by a very attenuated ovolo moulding similar to those shown as elements of cornices in Plates 12 and 13 of Asher Benjamin’s American Builder’s Companion (1806).  The cornice of this chamber displays a similar moulding.


The eastern front chamber displays an unusual amount of reeding.  The room cornice has a partly reeded soffit, supported by the same bead-cove-and-cable moulding that is seen as a backband in the front entry.  The mantelpiece has a band of diagonal reeding above its frieze.  The two-part window shutters run on middle rails that have horizontally reeded faces.


The second-floor rooms at the rear of the main house are simply finished.  The middle chamber, above the kitchen, has a small fireplace.  The northwestern chamber was reconfigured with new partitions that appear to date from the mid-1800s.


The summer kitchen is finished in a style that is comparable to that of the main kitchen.  Behind the chimney of the summer kitchen, as is noted above, is a well-finished room (now used as a modern kitchen) that has a delicate federal-style mantelpiece, suggesting that this room may have served as a detached chamber, perhaps for an elderly member of the family such as the widowed Lois Cate Demeritt (1758-1838).


Comparative evaluation:  The Demeritt House is the best example so far identified in Durham of a two-story, center chimney house in the federal style.  A number of houses of comparable plan survive in Durham, but all date from the eighteenth century and exhibit Georgian joinery.  The Demeritt House is significant in displaying the retention of an eighteenth-century house form in the family of a prosperous farmer in the first decade of the nineteenth century.  At the same time, the house also reveals how the new federal style, usually associated with a different floor plan, was adapted to the traditional center-chimney, two-room-deep house form that had been commonplace in the Piscataqua region since the early 1700s.


Several Durham houses of comparable plan but earlier date were recorded by the Historic American Buildings Survey in the 1930s.  One of the most visible is the Ebenezer Smith House, which stands on Durham’s Main Street.  Recorded as HABS project NH-14, the Smith House has a large central chimney with a fireplace arrangement comparable to that of the Demeritt House, and also has a rear ell (two-story).  The Smith House dates from circa 1784 and displays raised-panel joinery throughout.


A second dwelling of comparable floor plan is the General John Sullivan House at Durham Landing.  Like the Smith House and the Demeritt House, the Sullivan House exhibits the familiar center chimney and has a rear ell that extends perpendicular to the axis of the main house.  It was recorded as HABS project NH-1.   The Sullivan House dates from around 1740 and displays raised-panel joinery throughout.


Farther from the center of town stands the Pendergast Garrison, dated around 1735.  This house, too, has a central chimney.  Although it does not have the customary ell at right angles to the main block, it has several extensions that were added at various periods.  The Pendergast Garrison displays eighteenth-century joiner’s work combined with elements in the Greek Revival style, dating from the mid-1800s.


The Durham dwelling that is most comparable to the Demeritt House in both plan and finish is the Ffrost-Sawyer House near Durham Landing.  Standing on a hill on the north side of the Oyster River, opposite the General Sullivan House, the Ffrost-Sawyer House has a central chimney and an ell that extends behind the main block, being offset to expose a portion of its end wall as a projection beyond the side elevation of the main house.  The main chimney accommodates a number of fireplaces for the main rooms.  The ell contains the kitchen chimney for the dwelling, with a summer kitchen in the cellar.  Although the Ffrost-Sawyer House has a frame that dates for the most part from around 1700, its interior finish was installed by local joiner Jacob Odell (1777-1838) in 1802.  In general appearance, the interior joinery of the Ffrost-Sawyer House bears a close resemblance to that of the Demeritt House, although the Demeritt House exhibits much greater variety and virtuosity of detailing.  


In 1804, Odell was employed in Portsmouth by Ebenezer Thompson, a merchant who had moved to Portsmouth from Durham.  It is possible that Odell’s work in the seaport, combined with the publication of Benjamin’s American Builder’s Companion in 1806, advanced Odell’s command of the federal style to the point that he could be the craftsman who finished the interior of the Demeritt House as he had finished the interior of the Ffrost-Sawyer House a few years earlier.  


On the other hand, Durham had other skilled joiners in the early 1800s.  The brothers Edward Pendexter (1778-1843) and George Pendexter (1780-1856) lived in Dover and Madbury, but were natives of Durham.  In 1806, the Pendexter brothers executed the exterior joinery of the William Hale house in Dover from a design by the local builder-architect Bradbury Johnson.  


Perhaps most significantly, Nathaniel Demeritt (1751-1827) of Durham, the elder brother of Israel, the owner of the house, was apparently a joiner.  A copy of the second edition (1798) of Asher Benjamin’s The Country Builder’s Assistant bearing Nathaniel’s name, and also those of later owners Samuel Furber of Lee and Gorden Demeritt of Northwood, is in the collections of the New Hampshire Historical Society in Concord.  As noted above, Plate 1 of The Country Builder’s Assistant may have provided the design for architraves and cornices in the Demeritt House.  If the house was finished by the fifty-seven-year-old Nathaniel Demeritt, some of the conservatism seen in the plan and joinery of the building may be explained.

44. National or State Register Criteria Statement of Significance:  The  Demeritt-O’Kane house is significant under National Register Criterion B for its association with Albert DeMeritt, a founder, trustee, and early supporter of the University of New Hampshire; with Elizabeth Pickering Thompson DeMeritt, who served as dean of women at the university; and with Professor Walter C. O’Kane, an entomologist and early faculty member on the Durham campus who deeded the property to the University of New Hampshire in several increments.  The Demeritt-O’Kane house is significant under National Register Criterion C as an excellent and little-altered example of a center-chimney dwelling that displays the application of the new federal style of architecture to a vernacular house form that had been employed for a century when this house was constructed.  Although it 


cannot be proven that Israel Demeritt’s brother Nathaniel finished the house, the dwelling does illustrate the powerful influence of the early books of Asher Benjamin in reshaping the form and style of New Hampshire joinery in the early 1800s.

45.
Period of Significance: 1808-1951 (arbitrary fifty-year National Register cutoff date).

46.
Statement of Integrity:  The Demeritt house retains a high degree of integrity for the period of its construction by Israel Demeritt in 1808.  The house reveals some mid-nineteenth-century stylistic changes that may be attributed to Israel’s son, the Hon. Stephen Demeritt.  The imprints of the last of the family, Albert DeMeritt, and of the last private owner, Professor Walter C. O’Kane, are relatively slight and do not change the overall character of the house.  The University of New Hampshire has made superficial changes in adapting the building for office use and for child development studies, but these changes are reversible.

47.
Boundary Discussion:  Professor Walter C. O’Kane deeded most of the outlying Demeritt farmlands to the University of New Hampshire in 1930.  The university has employed these lands for varying purposes, erecting buildings for dairy science programs, electronic communications, and child development studies.  The nominated property is therefore defined as coinciding with the bounds of the smaller parcel, containing the Demeritt house and an adjacent structure, that was retained by Dr. O’Kane in 1930 but deeded to the University of New Hampshire in 1959.
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Address:
 Israel Demeritt House, Mast Rd. Ext. Durham, N.H. Date taken: 7/2/01 Negative stored at: NHDHR

Photo #2 description: South (front) and west elevations
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Photo #3 description: Eastern elevation of main house and wing, showing shed/study/office at right
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Address:
 Israel Demeritt House, Mast Rd. Ext., Durham, N.H. Date taken: 7/2/01 Negative stored at: NHDHR

Photo #4 description: Eastern elevation of main house and wing, showing porch
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Photo #5 description: West elevation and north (rear) elevation of main house; west elevation of wing
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Address:
 Israel Demeritt House, Mast Rd. Ext., Durham, N.H. Date taken: 7/2/01 Negative stored at: NHDHR

Photo #6 description: Front entry, showing staircase, balustrade, and mid-nineteenth-century wallpaper
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Photo #7 description: Upper entry, showing balustrade and door casings
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Address: Israel Demeritt House, Mast Rd. Ext., Durham, N.H. Date taken: 7/2/01 Negative stored at: NHDHR

Photo #8 description: West wall of east dining or sitting room, first floor, showing flat paneling, added mantelshelf

Roll #:
One
Frame #:
 4
Direction: Looking west



Photo #9 description: West wall of eastern bedchamber, showing mantelpiece with reeded bed moulding

Roll #:
One
Frame #:
 12
Direction: Looking west


Address:
 Israel Demeritt House, Mast Rd. Ext., Durham, N.H. Date taken: 7/2/01 Negative stored at: NHDHR

Photo #10 description: East wall of western bedchamber, showing mantelpiece, closet, wainscoting

Roll #:
One
Frame #:
 14
Direction: Looking northeast


Photo #11 description: Wallpaper pattern from front entry, from Wallpaper in New England (1986)

Roll #:
N/A
Frame #:

Direction:


01/11/01





35.  Photo #1			36.  Date: July 2, 2001


37.  Roll # One	Frame #	18	Direction:  North		


38.  Negative stored at: 	NHDHR				





39.  Location map:	
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40.  Property Map:	                                                                                         Parking Lot
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Surveyor’s Evaluation:





NR listed:	individual	_____	NR	eligible:			NR Criteria:	A  _____


		within district	_____		individual	__X__			B  ___X_


					within district	_____			C  ___X_


Integrity:	yes	__X__		not eligible	_____			D  _____


		no	_____		more info needed	_____			E  _____
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